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. were, We first met back in 1932, which -is Just about 3_
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INTERVIEYW OF RALFH HORLON
B

INTERVIEWER: JOSEPH DOLAM
!
DATE OF INTERVIEW: June 1, 1964
1

Joseph Dolan: TEt¥s June 1, 1964, we'we at Rip Horton's

oifice in uhe Pentagon. 'Thig is Joe Dolan fwom the Lopartuent

of Justice. Rip was an old friend of President Jchn Rehaody
and we are going to ehat a 1little hit this morning as part

of the oral history project of the Kennedy Library.

Rip, I just look over your hesd here and I see a
picturg on the wall that says Rip Horton, Lem Billings,
Butch Schreiber and Jack Remnedy. Jaclkk Kennedy looks as
if his coat doekn' £it him. It looks as if--1s that
somebody elsefs coat he has on there?

Ralph Horton: No, in school he always looked as thoush he
wore hand-me-down clothing., He was a very pimple sort of
a person, not the least bit ocstentatious, what with his
wealth, and Jjust a regular boy the same as the rest of

us
=
years ago at Choate school, and the late President and I
became very good friends at vhat time, which friendship
lasted until the day he died in 1963. -

J.U.: Did he go all the way through Choats?

R.H.: Yes, he did, Ve started there as freshmen and grad-
uated in 1935, ; )

Where had you come from?

J.D.3
R.E.: I had come Irom New York Clty and he had come frouw
Bromxville. :

Jdo.BD.: Which is alsgo in New York City.

M.t Vhich is also part of New York--it's in Westchaster.
Jd.D.: So goulre not a native of Nebraska,

just happened to run the campaign out
Pragident, I had nothlng whatsocever to

I. }rgi : .{?CJ_- -TC:?_Q .i =‘
evre for the late ]

Go with Nebresika,

d o) 8 n, tnat was your comnection with Nebraska.

adl g » Fad g
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my” only connection with Hebrasksa.

o]

A.H.: That ws

. N ¢
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fany people;s thiluk it'e Rip Hovrlton from Nebrauska.

R.H.,: No, no, I vas & L¢1y boy they sent ocut to a Lawvm
state to atbempt te yrun the Ll'”LLOW in 1920 fopr »the

iste President, and that hag been my ounly teip to the

Stete end God willing, I VPH’L be golng back in the iuuuf&,-
d.0.¢ lhen was this photograph Gaken?

That was probably talen about 1933 or 34, Youlll
the Pregident has a golf club in his hand., Ie
enjoyed playing golf and we used to go te Florida
over Christmass vacations. :

J.D.: WUould you go to Ft. Lavderdale?

4 .
R.H.: No, we went down to Palm Befich to vislt his Father
ard che President would be there, &nd Lem Billings, myegelf,
Joe Kennedy, Jdr.. and Ambassador Jeoseph Rennedy., We'd plsy
goll almost (V@“J day. Generally we thvee boys, Jog, JdTr.;
Jack and nyself, would compets against the Ambassador, who
played g very fine game of goif, T mipght add. dJack was the
weal member of our team bubt he was aluways in there pitehing
end trying.

J.D.4 Vho was besL?

R.,H.: Mpr. Kennedy was and I was probably sccond best, T
was ©the captein of the Choate team. the golf bteamn. IL was
& six man team and Young Jack Kennedy rated about numbear
Tourteen out of the total golf ‘squad.

d.D.: Tas he a great student in thoge days?

Rk.H.: Wo, he was & very mediccre sbudent.. He did have -one

o 4

puftjcular flair that gtands out In my mind and that wasg a
flalr for writing. We used to have to submlt essays two

or three times & year and we had an Engligh teacher by the
name of Dpr. Tinker, I can remember after we had submitted
our essays, Dr. Tinker said bto Jaek Kennedy, Jack you have
a very definite flailr for writing. It's a carcer thal you

- should think of pursuing when you greduate from school dnd

college. And 1t came ag sort of a shoek to me because I
never congidered Jack Kennedy a very outstanding student in
any particular avea. , * ,

d.0.: VWnere did you think he would go after school?.



H,: I thought--I really didn't give 1t too much thoupliv

R.H, i

as ©o what he might do. I thought he might posaibly go
into business witih his fathes that he mipgh® popsibly go
into some form of public gc Llee, because even in those -

yted in politleal events and

i
cerly days he was very inbere
particularly inteprnational events. I can remember oue
particular time we used to listen o an 0ld radio progréau
called Information Please, and they'd ask very difficult

qguestions, everything from sports to opera. One part-
icular time we were listening. to the. program and I'd know
roughly 10 percent of the answers and Jack Kennedy would
know & good 50 or 60 percent and he never ssemed to vead
anymore than I did or he wasn't & better student and, I,
at that time, didn't think he wag any brighter than I was.
And I asked him how he happened to do so well on these
particular tests of this particulay questioning and [
remember very well that he sald the most difficult thing
in the world is. to concentrate and to re-read what you'lve
already done. He gaid I'1l pick up an article; I'll read .
it; and then I'11l force myself to lay down for about & hall
an hour and go through the total article in my mind, bring-
ing to memcry as much as I pogsibly can énd then analyzing -
the article, and then attacking it and tearing 1t down.

And I think from that early training he gained a great

deal toward securing his memoyy for everything he read

that was so cutstanding in his early development.

d.D.: Did he indicate to you That that was a course of
action that occurred to him spontaneously, or had been
inspired by his Dad or some teacher? Do you know how he
came by this process? ; h :

R.H.: T don't know how he came by it, but I would say that
his rather probasbly was instrumental, ag he was in so many
things insplring Jack to do cebitain things., Hig father was
a very remarkable teacher. I can remember sitiing around
the dinner table down in Palm Beach over Eagber vacations
and the whole talk would center around polities and inter-
national events, Mr., Kennedy wasg then Ambassador to the
Court of St. James in England., And any of the children
could ask him questions and in the pgreatest detail, no
matter how simple or how stupld the guestions might seem,
the Ambagsador would go to great lengths To describe 16,
- to explain it, Go ezplain the strengths or weaknesses of a
particular policy that he was discusgsing. However, if an
outsider, such as mysgelf, would have ask the Ambassador a
guestion, he'd be practically ignored,

J.D.: He, would he Just answer it? '

atoma
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: : He would just answer it rather eurtly asg though hs
cign't want to be bothered with your questions, He was only
concernsd about educating his own children. On the golf
course 1t was entirely differsnt, becaugse I played a good
game of golf and he'd always hold mwe up as an eaﬂmpie-tﬁ
hoth yoling Joe and to Jagck as uOHﬂtﬁJHﬂ he would like for
them to turn into, which would drive them bhoth & liviig
crazy, quite frankly., But on the golf course, I played a
good game of golf and I was rather competitive, so

Mpr, Kennedy would upe me as an example of what he wanted
his sons to ke ae golfers and he'd even streteh it a 1ittle
more, I think, to irritate them ag a person.

J.D,: Did this cr@ate any strain on ycuf xriendah ip. with
Johni Kennedy?

R.H.: Not paw?lcuiarlv. He had too good a senge of humor.
T2 never seen him disturbed; or hurt, or his feelings =

wounded by any particular event or occuvence. He Jugt had
too good a sense of humor, He figured that his father wes

pulling my leg, which he probably was,
d.D.: VWhere was Joe going o school?

R.H.: Joe at that particular time was Just finishing up
Choate, As I recall, he was two,years shead of ua and
over the threé¢ or Tour years I went to Palm Beaeh, dJoe
graduated from Choate and he went to Havvard and, I believe
thbu Ambassador Kennedy was very interested in. diV¢nﬂ Jaci
s0 go to Harvard, but Jack had two very good friends,
Lﬁmoyne Billings and myself, and &tr¢0u1y o The basig of-
friendship he chose to go Lo Princeton. )

F 3 Jiﬂ JECE Eennedy see much of Joz, that you know of,

They used to see each cother, but belng two classes

oE and also both being very competitive, great compe-

cition existed between Lnaze two boyes as to who would be
€ outstanding; they weren's quite z2s close as they

b Joe had his own AﬁATHﬁ& and Jaelr had his own

s Jogts friends were a little more mabture than

n

nd Jaekts friends,

J.0.: ¥What was your -- was he quibe bookish, or o
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3 absorbh on the batlip of this rebaniy Tid
D WO T"Efi cn -- ha seencd Lo aﬂu;a.ma mdL;-. kS el ol
et the rest of us. He #lgo, which I 2 Gl
indicative of his future, always read tha v 1a
roac thet every sinzle dasy frosn cover to
that gave him a great inslght into the uulislcx
international ﬂcblv Lles which he was po.intove -d 4. Hlen
we proaduated irom Lhoate we exchénged pileburas 850G WANY
eu*ors g0 and the inscription on his picbture To me wos alpo,

inle, 1n&¢cat1V£ of his inberest in polltlical affalirs
emembey it vexywell -- I gtill have the picture.
T Boss Twe ﬂ €F~m Hemcst Abs, may we voom topether at

G
ng Sing," He hbd a zenge of huwmor aboub Lulngﬂ.
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Whet was the -~ How did you become Boss Wwe*dﬁ

o1

R.H, ¢ I wag also interested in politics, and we ﬁsad to have
a group that went together -- therve werc 13 of us -- and we
called this group the Muckers Club. We were slightly anti-

-gehool admninistration, We were constanbly in trouble, not
for any serdious things, but just Loy belng sloppy. rough-
housing, going out after lights at night to go to a local
diner to get something to eat, and Jjust non-conformists at
schoecl, and this all came to & head one day when the head-
master in echapel golt up --- we had chapel every evening =-- and
talked about the bhad apples in every basket, and suddenly
My, St. John, the headmaster at Ghoate, let loose at the
Muckers.Club, all 13 of us. - .

J.D.%?  He named them?

H.H.: He named the members, he named the club.
baa apples and waers corrupbing the moralsg and integrity of
the gther students in the school. ey

Jed)s s Muat have made you feel very important,

‘R.H.: Made us fezl very important -- and at that stage .of
%e game Mr,., S, John uﬁammesod cach cne o? ug from school

J.B.t He expelled you?
R.HE.:  Expelled ug from school, However our families were
notified, and I renember Me, Jureph Kennedy had to eome up

te the school at thal time. He was y very dnvolved also In thoe
administration under Franklin Rocsevelt.

ie were the



: hat year would that be?

BR.H.: This wag around 1934 when we were Jjuniors at Choate
end lir. Kennedy was highly irvate at ¥oung Jack for allowing
himself to get. inbo this particular predicament, and altey
ouy parents spoke to the headwaster we promised to disband
this Muckers Club, promised To more rigidly conform to the
school administrdLlon and thelr regulations, we were taken
baek in school without ever ctuaijy having to leave school,
lie were puni%h?d by being kept over Eagter vacation for | y
or four days and not allowed to Zo home with the rest ol
students. : :

a

J.D.¢{ fnd by having your parents apprised of your activitics:

_.,
i
bt
m
2
£n

R.Ha

e

L] | .
And also having our parents apprised of our actlvi
J.D.: TWho had organized the Mucliers? '

R,E.: I was more or less the head of 1t., BEvery member was
egual, but I had the title of ecretary and that made me the
prime mover in the Muckers Club. Jack Kennedy also at that
time showed a desire o excel in spite of this other side of
him. In our senior year we had electiong for the handsomest,
the best dancer, and the wittiest, and so0 on and so forth,
and Jack wanted to be voted the most limuly to succeed,

So we campaigned and traded votes back ana forth

J.D.2 You mean I'1l1l vote for you for ‘most likely 6o SQCCCLd
1T you vote Tor me for best athlete,

R.Heﬁ Best dancer, best athlete, best dencer --
d.D,: What was Tthe most expenaive office in this vobte buyling
c*:tmpaign ?

R.H.: Well, I accepted most generously For some particu1d=
reason, and as a result Jack, of a gwaéuacwnb clags of wouphly,
I think, 80 or 90 students, secured approximately 50% of the
votes for most likely o succeed, There was nobody near hinm
S0 cu t was & sign poinbing o his fubure politically.,

A 3B, 2 Were you voted most penerous?

R.H.: T was voted most generous.



.
* e k :
I.D.:  How did the vest of vour slate do? You couldn't

e

let everyone in the cless in on your slate ov
s would 147 :

nossibly have
i k)

it wauldn't have woy

) H.: No, we didn't. We didn't have everyone. in on 1t
put The word got around that Jack Kennedy was most 1likely
to succeed and it wesn't a hardship. on .any p@rsam at thet'
particular time to vote for him for that ofifice megun”J nons
of us were too concerned gbout the future. '
. Tell me a little more ct,ui the Muckers, that sounds
Tegting. How long did you lagb? ‘

INtere

erg Club only lasted for about 3 months, T
ag I pay, by non-conformists; there were 13

|

R.H.: The Muek
vﬁﬂ cfwanjged}

2B .

Cne of you decide that 13 1s a idgic numbef Or BOme -

Thir

BR,H.: Hot pa ytLGUsﬁLJv. It just hapmo:@d £o hw 13 or us

That went around togebher, like the people in the picture
up on the wall, There was Billings: there was Bulch
Schreiber who wes 8 very outstanding athlete; there was '
Pregident Kennedy, myself, and the others weve all reagon-
hly good athlet but Just more or legs regular type of

o &

e _

1little gold shovel mades - -and on it we had
)

guvs, We had a (¥
the person's initlials nd alse CMC which:stoog for Choate
Muclkens Club; and we very pro ??1 "Splay@d hDaﬁ shovelg.,
Infortunately over the yeawrs Tive lost mine. I don't lknow
there are sny still in exis uLnfug But after the head-

18 fe blvf bouu POLLCA zpples in the bzsket we dls-

{1
% R

J.D.: Dlé that make you the cnvy of all the other st uent“*
H.H.,: Ev crwnujy but the Student Council, They warent
‘avor of our particular orgsnization.

Lo
o
™y

Lty
TS

-
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Jd.0,3 (ol were & rival goveroment?

R.H,: Hival government of the Student Councll, but they
vere Firmly entrenched in power and had. the support of the

gre

0
p=-

acdministration;: so there was nc way of usurping them from
pewer, mich as we would have. likeditio. ]

| |
J.D,: You were fighting City Hall,
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R.H.: Always fightiﬁg City Hall, the ewcranmh 2 LDilLi&uL
machine., '

J.D,: Did you have any projects, other than just fun like
going out for hamburgers or something like that? -

R.H.: No, none whatsoever.,

J.D.: You didn't move the bell tower, o the bell and 7 _
-the bell tower, or anything like that, or put a cow on the :
roofl? . ‘ ‘ 5

R.H.: DMNo, there were no traditions like that at Choate at .
all. -No, we didn't get into anything . of that nature. One
particulasr thing that caused us a good deal of concern and

a good deal of grief later on wass.. There was an Assistant
Headmesber at Choate who had a very pretty wijeg and she used
to be extremely kind towards the students; and there wasg one
paveticular student by the nams of Maury Shea who was in the
Muckers Club, the same as we were, and she was particularly
nice to him. And young Jack Kennedy composed a song one |
time. It went like this®. "Maury Shea, what's your appeal, g Bty :
Queenie, we want a new deal.". CQueenie was the name of the :
Azsistant Headmaster's wife. She apparently heard about S
this song end she made Jack Kennedy and myself stand up ?
there and recite it or sing it to us, sing it to her rather.

T think if that had reached the Headmaster both of ug would

have been thrown out of school once and for all; but,

fortunately, she dldn't say anything about it.

Jd.D.: What was your involvement? How did she come to pick
youe -

R.H.: ©She kncw that Jack and T were singing the song around
thé school she picked me along with Jack.

= e o :- B P y .
J.D.: Did Maury Shesior O”Shag tell her?

R.H.: MNeury Shea, I think he's the one who told her about it,

J,D.: &hea. Oh, he did hear about 1it. .

he had heard about i1t and he didn't like 17
¥ 80 he must have told her in & moment of great

CL[deCMLL because before we knew it, we were accosted by her.

R.H.: Ye

ta




tleipation in school
athletics or any-

\;‘fm?d e 11'5'

R.H.: Yes, he was, He was part of the organized aefivities,
e was on a football team, not the first team but one of the

intra-mural teams during that season, In the winter, I Cthink
ie played around at bwshwtball; and in the pfﬁnﬁq he was on

s N

Ag Tar as any other dbthitﬂ is concerned, he was financial
editor of the gupat@ Jrief, That's a yearbook that was put
cut by the senior ¢lase., It had pietures of the graduating
class as acil a3 the undergraduate classes, and it carried
the poll that I mentioned before, the election as well as |
811 gborting events., He was business manager of that., I
can remember very well that I always thought he was ex-
tremely sloppy in his habits; and a good deal of advertisling
wes sold for the particulax Brlefl asg wel? ag artleles; and
the whole book had to be put together, and it also had to
be financlally sound., I can nmemember when he balanced his
back at the end of the year, I was amazed he was only one
penny off because in my opinion, he was terribly careless
in his hsbits, ‘ .

J.D.: HNaybe it was an 8CCldﬂnL.

RH.: I don't think it was an aceident., He had a very
 sharp mind, which I didn't appreciate at that particular
time, : ‘ '

J.D.: UWere there any other students, contemporaries of
yours and John Kennedy's at Choate, who were pef“ouagem
later in the Kcnnogy Adminigtration, or in other parts '
of his career prior to his uomlng to the Uhife House?

R.H.: I'd say the person who was ClOSE&L and participated
in the Kennedy movement from eawly 1946 right to the time
of his death was lemoyne Billings. HHe was in the first
Congressional race that President Kennedy was invelved

in st Boston in 19406 and in every uubsequent one.

J.D.: Was Lem another New Yorker?

R.H.: No, Lem came from Pittshurg, and he and the President
roomed together the last two years at Choate; and then, the
three of us roomed together when we went to Princeton.

the golf aquad.. He wasn't cutstanding in any of those sporvs, -



-

J:Ds Vhat did you?do that sgummer hetwoon Choate and

Princeton? Go off separate ways?

R.H,: e all went our separaLc ways. I know that President
Kennedy =t some stage in there took a trip to Eupope with

Lem Billings, but in my opinion it happened during his college
ears at .Harvard, to the best of my recollection.

e
?
@

k'e:{'

' D.:  Well, tell us about Princeton -~ this would be the
all of '35. ! 3
R.H.: Well -~ Fall of '35 we went to Princeton, and we

rocmed 1n an old hall called South Reunion Hall, It's the
oldest bullding outside of Nasesu Hall at Princeton, and it was

also the cheapastgbuilding, the room rent, and the reason for

that was that Lem Billings wasn't well to do at all -- as a

matter of fact he went to Princéton on a scholarship, .and the
rent that he could afford was very nominal. So we selected

this particular hall, and we roomed on the top Ffloor of South
Reunion Hall. T can remember one day very well -- Ambassador
Kennedy pulled up there in a large Cadillac, chauffeur driven,
and we were up four flights. Afber he climbed two flights,

he had on a very heavy coat of his for a football game that

he had come to Princeton for - climbed up the first two flights
and he was so fatigued that he stood out on the fire escape

and took his coat off and threw it down to Dave the chauffeur.

He was ovcrheated and over exerted on that tl¢p up to our room.
Jack was only at Princeton for about four months and then he was
taken sick and he leit Princeton. -

'1‘:{1 <y

‘;n

J.D.: That would be just a little more than a term.

‘R.H.:  Just the first term, that's all. He left around
Christmas. And as well as I mave known the man, even in those
daye, I never heard him discuss the state of his health. But

his stay at Princeton wasg very short.

Jelde s He was there such a short time he didn't have any msjor --

everyone took the same courses s a freshman, dldnﬂt they?

R.H.: That's right

d.D.:  Were you in class topether?
H Yes, we were 1n English class tﬁ'bthL, and as I ”ay,
wetion that there was uozhnng ‘wi};
nce Lu) l.:!fj tua 3 o
of us aﬁ‘ffemnm;n

‘his i ”buy was 80 short at Prin
to distinguish 1t at all. Me never had a ¢
into any particular crowd or group. The threse

"

g piei
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+stdek pretty much togethér. Onceypin a'while on’ £ooabaTI N 1 _
.+ weekends we might have girls down for football. games, but hip_=‘v
stay wag extremely shoqt . 7w=-”_4.h A : : Lresh

J.D.: ‘ Were there other Cﬁoate gfads 1n your class° rﬁf¢ chfgp5_

- R. H.. Yes, there must have b en aboub, oh 15 or 20 of us,. g bl
- but we weren't.close to any of. these —-= none of the Mucker CJuh for
crowd had come to Princeton A R

! o B ; :
i SRl | . ;
pt s : AL

’J.D.;' ,You were the only three Muckers” L AR a4 g

'-‘R,HJE‘.‘We were the qnly three Mu?kers who went bo Princeton

gDy ' It had dissqlved ‘but the memory lingered on._

-.)
ET ORI o v

I R H;: "Itls 11ngéred on, to Lhi° day _T~-‘ T {;fj";“.V'l' v

Did he go out for any sports° , .} 5 i ST e

9
P

R.H.: ' We all had to take some sort of sport in ‘the Fall cangi’ .
i rcally can't remember what’ President Kennedy did do at ¥ i B
Princeton. I think that we &1l had to take a body- building
course, which probably SULfiCCd as: athletics for him.. I know
Jack Xennedy was my second, and I-had had a bout in the afters,
noon which I .was fortunate enough to w1n, and then: I was in the |, |
.finals on this ‘particular day, which- ‘wag-in ‘the-evening in the: .
‘%chool gymnasium. I remember very well that Jack: K@nnedy and -
+T went up to a nearby sodh fountain before this bout and all
« _that he would let me eat was a dish of cdorn flakes becausg he |
didn't want me to go in there on any sort of a- full stomach.
Incidentally, T lost in the flﬂals e doe & _
J D.: Do you think that decfded nim to meke a career other Lhen

“in Lhe flwht game CHa TR b AR AT g |
. , 'y i ;

B.H.: Tnat was as.farp aS'nL very deflnitely, yes‘—— Ivd say .

that cured him of any ambltlon in that field ettt 1

'j JuD..- You continued on at Prﬂnceton‘~¥
T continued on at Princeton, graduafed --'””

TeB X The Pncbldcnt uropped out° .
RH.:- 1 gra@uated in . Lhe clase Qt 19?) _"-{'f-  ,"H
"y PP I o
J.D.:._-Did Lem confinue aleo°

i et s L P

I boxed in the Fall, and I went: into ‘the school tournament and: g



»
——

B.H.;  Lem contlnued on, we roomed tog@thef for tuo vears and”
- then he got a s holarship, & managerahip at the . Ivy Club in
Princeton, so h& lived, right Lhore because he waa alway oo_a

'very close budget.
3 » -

(J. D :, Now, where did you mext. cvoss paths Wlth John Kannedy° s
' What did ‘he do when he left there”__ ' : 5 TR TR

e e T e T T

: R;H..-' John Kennedy, § believe, went to the Mavo Clinic. . &
Shortly after that'he went over to Europe -- his father was'\ . i
Ambassador to the Court of St. James, and he worked with'his = - . 5
father over there until he entered Harvard the next Fall. . . o
- And my paths with Jack Kennedy crossed aeveral times during = R
Qur college years. We still went down to Florida over Ghrlatmaa ;

: ',‘vacatlon and visited him there e A BN B b i
: D..l Did Lem go there, too? '_'“u 3 e o £
R H.: ILem WOU1d g0 dﬁwn, I'd go dpwn, and from Harvard ; '?' : E

Jack had Torbej M%Donald who was later captain of football "
Harvard and is'now in the House of Repreaontat1Ves Wé used =
to play .2 congiderable amount of -touch football. =-- mornings .. v |
we would do a lot of SW1mming and in. the . afternoon we'd have W
~our golf games. Mr. Kennedy was always there over thé.Chriatmaa;W- :
holidays and we'd play goli , Rl s T B

F.B.s . Did you sall ‘down there9 2 Ve
'R.H.: ' No, we didn't sail at all | ":‘ a5

5 There 8 ,ot much opportunity for small boat salllng, .

- I3 thereg . . s i

‘R. H.. No, I remember we went out deep- sea flshing one day,
but that's the only recollection I have of sailina at all

d.D.s D ' D}dn't he go to Stanford for a month or two° :

. R.H. I think he did, yes, but T thlnk that was after he
graduated from Harvard ' .

i

.D.f Oh -~ graduate work' g, P B W -8 g g o

&

R.H.2 Btcauae I can ramember 80 clearly one time being in a
- movie and watching the news and it was just at the time the

- draft was put 1nto effect, dwafting men into the Army, and ona * '

-of the lowest numbersg was young Jack Kennedy, and thig pilecture !

was flashed on the acreeu, and I remember getting oulte a kiclk 2
~out of it, thlnklng in tarma of th belng rafte 1nto ‘the service.

. W
t b
i Y ol

1
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T i And you think he was ouL on .the. West Coast?
\ i
R.H. He was' out on the West CoasL 4t the time because I ,'
remember the flash came from California and wha't was particularly .
odd sbout it was the fact that his father. was 80 opposed to
our getting involved 1n any foreign commitments at th?y time, oo, o5

o B B ‘would this be about 1)#0 September 1940 e

R.H.: This was around September ;— iﬁi

"J.Dis September, 1940 was the original draft draw1ng

R.H.: " Yes.’ ;

P aBed ”Number 158{—~ 1

RE Yes, this wag around 1940 jusf Wheh he wastrobably,

e going out to Stanford Universlty 3 '“%;; ,

J.D.» - That would be the Fall following the completion of his. -
. -undergraduate studies.; Did he lose a year by.the Harvard- :
Princeton -~ ' WL g o PR e R

R.H.: - Yes, Yes.

WDt 8o heidtd -~ T Wil
RB.E.: Yes, he 1ost a year, graduated in '40 -- and. it was at
that time that he wrote his first book, While- England Slept,: .
gnd he sent me 2 copy of it at that particular time, which I .
f, 8till have, with a suitable inscription. It was humorous,-

I don't recall it too well, but I had gone to work at that
point for Continental Can in a regular training .course, ahd
P was time-keeping in a factory), learning the.various operations,,
end the inscription went something?®to the effect "o Rip Horton
who has timekeeper g personality and I'm sure w111 go Far ¥In -
this world, " 51gned Jack Kennedy. ¢ £

J.D.:. - Did his personality seem to be about the same when you-
would see him down in West Palm -- you would see him only
_sporadically at measured intervals, and I would think you would -
~have more of a chance to look at him from outside and to think
about -- is this the same fellow that went to"Choate with me
than if you had been with him eVGry day. Is that so?

R, H. That's very Lrue, but T didn't notire Jnﬁ particular .
'oharf*a in nis Dersonallty. He was still very ‘light; véry witty,’

i
L™

L - |



s particularly loyel.gcod friend who cherished old friend-

n

- ghips very, very much. .As a matter of fact, he put himself

¢

out a greab desl more to get in touch with -me and to sse

'mﬁ and retain our old friendship than I had done with him,

But his personality hadn’t changed particularly from the

andte dsys. I
to do, having completed college; I wouldn't have had Lhe

lesst idea. No, he was still. living-everyday and just en--

joying life .and people. He was very attractive to girls.
He had any number of gals who wereé devoted to- hlm, and
that eeemed to be hlu chief interest S

e l‘

.'E;DJ', Carefree? AP =

I3

R.H.: " Very carefree, yes, very carefree, but Jack was not

& soendth ift even:though he had a great deal of money. I
don't know whether it was the fact that he felt that he.had

money &and he didn’t want - people to take advantage &f him; or e

whether it was the, fact that he was: Light, thCh he really
wasn't., Buf he dndn't throw money around, ' He might pay
his ghare of a‘check if" he. remembewed to bring money with
him; but the gene ral situation was thdt hc dldnft have a

+. dollar in his pocxet

' 'J.D.: This was remarked on after he came tb the Senété.

R.H:: The Senate, yes.

'J.D.: He never had change in'his pockets or never remem-

bered just what he was supposed to be doing in the next:
two minutes. : B ; ;B B s

. Fay

- R.H,:. That's right, yes,

J:D.:r Which 18 fairly common, I think, ihépe@ple.that,are'
preoccupied with other things. ' s : ' -

 E H,: ‘ .w1th other thlngﬂ | Lut The incerestlng*th1vg

"wab as I 1ook back again T wouldn't, couldn't imagine what

his preoccupation was at that partlcuuar time. I couldn't

- imagine what he wes driving for, which he wash't parc~

icul arly d01no, or what he was iiving for.

J.D‘f Do you ‘think hc might, from your recollection of him

'busineas in New Yoric? That's what ‘Lem did, isntt‘it?

R.H.: No, Lem is,in thn qdvertisinp business in New York.

A

T were asked at that time what he was going -

" then, he might well have ended up- -in, the investment-banking

TAEEARNL I, Rk o .
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J.D.:, Oh, advert181ng' ‘ | 3 e L iy :- : o,

R,H.: No, I'd say that Jack hennedy s bEﬂb at that ponnt
was towards writing, which was indicative of his senior
thesis from Harvard. He had a 11a1r for wrltlng and X thlnh,.r

* ok el & So the book didn't surprise you9-

R.H.:  Not toc much but the depth of “the book and bha very,
fact that it was so well written did surprise me. I can,
remember Arthur Krock, what at that time was the pre-
eminent columist in this country, I believe, for the New
York -Timeg, and he still is very outstanding, wrote a

rcolumn on that book; and he still refers to that book
extolling the virtuee of that book as it being so fullc

- of good cqommon sense for the ﬂmerican people in the 1940'8.

'J.D.: Going back to Choate for a minute and just a general
guestion. There are geveral stories that Joe, Jr. and Jack
were great scrapers with each other, and that family rivalry
was such that it was givé nothing in a game or anything else;
and I think I've heard a story of either Ted or Bob saying
that they can remember the wall shaking in one of the
juvenile fights of Joe and Jack.- Iu that 1n 1ine with your-“

_ observations°

R.H.: kY;s, that would be. of oourse, they had matured a
Iittle from their earlier ages of 8 or 10 or. 12 when they
would try to knock each others breins out, but there was
a very intense competition between' the two boys, whether,
it was in swimming or dn the golﬁ course or in touch foot—
ball ‘'when we all used to play’ together

- J.D.: Did they alwayshwant to be on-opposite_Sidés op;.jt

R.H.: Always on opposite sides.:”

J. D, They didn't want to play with one another

--R.H.: They didn't want to play with one another- Jack
would always have Torbey McDonald on his team, who was
captaln of football at Harvard; ‘and Joe was a great
friend of Ted Reardon's who was;also, I believe, captain
of football at Harvard in Joe's year there. And Lem and
I would be more or less the line that would stand there

]
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and try to get in eadh other's wéj But the’ competltion

' Qaefinltely was between Jack and Joe, and: they might defer
to the superior abilities of a Ted Reardon or # Torbey ;

McDonald; but they were the driV1ng force on the team just
to beat each other. But at that stage of the game, they

'wﬁreﬂ't getting into brawls, the competition was ta?en out'fw,:

. the playlng fleld

2 SN e Bob? Was Bbb evef, or Ted, %hey're“-’

too ¥ young

R. H..: o, they were too ydung 4t that time. o & think Ted' .
and Bob might have been down to Florida once or twice durn"

- ing our stay there. I can remember Ted, I thlnk, but,I

don't remember Bob in those days.éﬂ,

¥ 705 - Did they . let;-did Joe-and: Jack et the, girls in the’- '
.familJ play as they did in later years, or was. the compet«fﬁ

ition too intense° fep S8 : i

R.H. No, these meetings down in. Florida were strictly com-
Dosed of comprised of Joe and Jack and their friends. - None

of the girls were there at the time; they were all too young.
I didn't meet the girls actually until, oh, around my senior

“year at Princeton and that's when I first. met Kathleen -and,

then Rosemary, who was not well; but the other gir]s were .
all younger at the time., o ‘ g

i vB So after you went off to Pfincéton, Jaéﬁ Kennedy'weﬁt
off to Harvard you'd Just see him sevcral times a yesr.

R.H.. VEPy intermituantly, and tThen we both went into the
ervice. He went into the PT boats. of course, and I went
1nto the Army; and I didn't see him untll 1946 after-the=:"
war, And that's whén... i ey ‘

B you corrcspond at all during the war?

" R.H.: No, we didn't. And that's when I got my First 1nkl-

ing of where his ambitions lay.  We were staying at a place .

Q up on the Cape, my wlfe and I, called Coonamasset; and 1]

telephoned, thisg was in the fall around Thank%giving of 13&6
the Kennedy house and Jack wasg down there. . He drove up. to :
Coonamasset to see us and brought us back to the house for

dinner. The Ambassador was there at. the time, Mrs. Kennedy,

also Teddy, Bobby and the girls were there., And.Jack had a
tape recorder, and he was practicing speaking into this tape

1 N s (AL Al
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recorder; and he mage me speak into it and then played

baclk the tape, and your own voice always sounds awful to ycu.
And T asked Jack why. he was working so hard with this ;

tape recorder and he told me -that he planned to run for
Congress. That was, I.say, the first indication as to

where hig inclinations were then leading him..

T

J.D.: UWouldn't that be 45°? He'ﬁan:in"aé.

| i . That was D”Ohdey in ‘45, yes, yes, - because he ran
i' the .fall of '46 Yes, that was ]yh s B g "k

J.D.: Were you 1nv01ved in that'campaign?

Helyb - L waﬂn't ihvolvéd at all in thp‘campaign, ho. f¢

-d.p.r .Did the.. from time to time you Pead-storius about B
the dimner table games, and you had mentioned earlier that .
when you were at-school with John Kennedy that you wcre Sy v
both devotees of Information Please. - Did those family R Ag T |
. table games go back as far as the Choate days, the quizz- o
ing by the elder members of the famlly, qula games of the

' uhllaﬂenQ

H.H.: Yes, Mr. Kennedy, I can remember ‘more clearly, this ,
particular two or three days.T spent there at the Cape with

the Kennedys, was at the house and' he was golng through a °

guiz gsme, largely with Jack, I Lhink, stimulating his mind

for his first step 1hto'politic - But I don't remember any

general games at that particular tlme with any of the -other

members of the family. But the talk with them at the.

Kennedy table, and this goes way back to 1933 or '34, was J

never trival. It always had to do w1th events and out- - S, _

standing perscnalitles

"J.D.: And everyone was supposed to have an oplnion and -
defend it. : i _ : . it v

R. H.. Everybody would. have an opinion and defend it, and

'_the younger members of the family like Bob and Ted would

. ask these questions that might have seemed sort of childish
at the time. But, as I said, Mr. Kennedy, at great lengths,

would explain the meaning of": what they were asklng and' the -

reason therefor.

d oD, WOuld the younger chnldren participate ingguestion- R

ing one of the elders. Would somebody be at bat, and every-




.one fire questions gt him or ....""

R.H.: I don't remenber that. WNo, no, no,'I just‘reﬂ
member the general .tenor or all the conversations and how
~stimulating it was for an outszder to be thete and 1jsten

to Mr. }enﬁedy : |

id.D. Then did 'you folloW the new Congreusman s*career, :

'when he was in the ‘House, when- he Wau elected9

RH,.z2 1 was, at that time, worklng in Nﬂw York, and.- I
naturally was very happy about his election and I would
see him very interhittently. I didn't get to Washington
particularly at that time. :When he would come up to New -
York, it was generally to take some girl out. Once in a:
while we'd double date, and he was going with many dif-

- ferent girls at that particular time. Ther I got in the

trucking business, and we had hoped to get some governmﬁntﬁtt

business. So I came to Washington, and I wanted tb make

g connection with the Transportation Corps in the- Depart- k

- ment of Defense. I went to then Representative Jack Ken--
nedy, and he and Ted Reardon and I came over to the De-
‘partment of Defense where he: introduced me to the Chief
of Transportation; and I can remember a conversation at
thgt time. I thought that he was working very hard; he

was driving. himself very hard, and this was only around .. .

1948 or so. I said to Lem Billings who happened to be-
in Washington st the time, just what' is Jack after; what
is he looking for. Lem said that he wants to be Pres- -
ident of the Unitéd States, and I was the most shocked .
person in the world. I looked upon him as” a Represent-
ative, but becoming President of the United’ Statas wae

a dream that was Jjust beyond my eomprehen51on + T-.¢an
remember when he made up his mind to run for. the Senate
against Cabot IL.odge and I quoted an article from - °
Arthur Krock. There had.been recently a column by him
about Lodge, pointing out that he was a very outstanding
American, what with his war record and his Family back- :
ground, and his. participation in public-affairs.. I g :
‘pointed out to Representative Kennedy what a difflcult
thing it would be to defeat him. Representative Kennedy
pointed out certain minor sarcasms, certain ironies of
this particular article by Arthur Krock as to how Cabot -~
Lodge was always on the popular side of every issue which
didn't necessarily make him an awfully good. stateuman, but
1t might make him a satisfactory politician. ~ And ‘he
shortly thereaflter, of course went into that particular
campaign and capitalized on these particular weaknesses

and won the Senate race.

o
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“J.Dr: ”hat'a be 1952,

R.H.: That was 1952. © ° ;. v& ‘

. J.D.: You weren't anolved in Lhe vdmnaign, you were
dcwn in Lew Yorle? : : : L

R.H.: T was in New York at Lhn time; . and shortly there~
after I went to Texas; gnd as a’ result T didn't see the
then Senator Kennedy for several years. I received a :
letter from him apprising me that he was going to marry
Jacqueline Kennedy and asking me’ to be an usher in his

wedding which I'd planned to 'do; but' just, oh, possibly . ..
a week before. the wedding I had an appendicitis operation

and was unable to,make it. And then I didn't see Senator
Kennedy until I came back from Texas .,which was around

1355 or- '56 and I got in touch with him. He was coming
to New York and I can remember very well that I met him
at a place called Chipps, which is a tailor in New York.
fs we left Chipps, we were walking along the street and

I noticed gll these people, just ordinary;people, wallk-
ing down the street, turning around and'loOKing at him %
and pointing him'out. And I -said to him, "Do you :

" realize ‘that all of these people recognize you; how .

- prominent you are?”  And he said, "Yes, I'm well aware

af 1L, It was nothing concc1ted about 1t, but he was
Jjust aware that he was at that point more than a Senator
from Massschusetts, but that he was becoming a national
figure. I can remember we went to 'a restaurant on Lex- -
ington Avenue for something to eat, this was arcund noonj
and he advised me at that time, I just don't remember the
year; I might be off a year or two; but he advised me at
that time that he had jusgt heard that he had 'won the Pulw
itzer Prize for Profwleb in Ccurcgea' I could tell and :
I never heard Jack Kennedy boast aboulb any accomplishments
or anything he had ever done, but I could gee. that he was
extremely ppoud and extremely touched by this paptlcular

Pulluzeﬁ Prize award.
J.D.: I think that waw‘1956'
R;H.: 1dt "ould be 8b0u5 1)56, ye&.

- d.D.: I was working for him then.

s
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"R.H.: 0Oh, were you, Joe9

J.D, Yes, I can remmmber Lhc pw riod before fhe award was.
ma de aﬂd I don't remember the time of the award though, but:
as you say, there was great interest.  All right, go ahead.

R.H.: And, shortly thergafter, oh around 1959; I didn't see
Jack | hennedy probably for a couple of years. I had had some
severe financial reverses and I had gone into a sort of a
perlod of withdrawal. I went to a football game with Lem
Billings down at Princeton, the first time I had béen back
in quite 2 while and Lem and I sat-together in the stands.
We just happened to’'run into each other, as a matter-or- ‘
- fact, and got to talking about Jaak;'and Iem said that you
definitely should look Jack Kennedy up. - He.still feels the
geme about you, as ayery old friend -and a good friend; and
he is going to be the next President of the United States.
Well, I was slightly embarrassged to get in touch with Jack.

It made it look as though I was tying my rather unsuccessfql ;

“wagon onto his particular succesbful wagon.

J D.: He didn't look that much 1ike he was g01ng to wln
at that point, Rip. s R R 1 et i S

% RHas - AEthat poini he‘didn't;*,Lem:thought‘he,waSJ'and-I .
was willing to take the gamble. And so,"I think Lem had: . :.
“Jack get in touch with me and invite me up to the Cape for
a week-end. I went over there. and none' of the older members
of the family were there. Jack was a little late insar--
riving. Ve were all around the dinner table and for zan-

outsider to participate with the Kennedys at anything like “Aaty

that is difficult because the talk 1is so fast; and the
chain of events and the patter and the wit and humor so .
keen; that for an, outsider to be there you feel like some
clod who has just come off the farm; .and I remember a
feeling of great discomfort for that first night. Jack
© arrived as we were all at dinner. - There must have been .
- 12 of us at the table, Jackie, Bobby, I.don't think. Teddy
was there; but all the sisters were therg, Sarbe Shriver,:
Peter Lawford, Lem and myself, And Jack came in and Lhe
first thing he did was come over to me and say 'hello”, and
"how good to see you again" just as though I had seen him‘

the day before. His feelinge for old friends never changed-- _

a'great sense of loyalty. And I spent the week-end there.
We plsyed golf together. We didn't discuss politics too
much. We noticed how he could read the papers so guickly -
gitting out on the veranda on Sunday morning. And I went



A
back home to Syracuse’ and, oh, this was around 13559,
I then for the first time got into Democratic politics.
Priongo that I had been a registered Republican, which.is
true of many of his friends, and got into local politics
and ran two or three campaigns up there just to get known .
"among the pollticians and then started the first Kennedy -
for President Ckub in up-state New Yorke : I worked: closely
with people like Pete Crotty up in- Buffalo and the -

O'Connells down in Albany, getting the stuff cleared with. _"'

Steve Smith, which was my flrst entry, entrance into the
Kennedy cpmpalgn _ _

J.D. Was Steve down et the Esso Buildlng here in’ Washing- 4
ton at that time? : = 2

R.H.: Yes, I came oown to eee Steve in the Esso Buildlng
“J.D.: The Kennedy for Pre51dent Committee°
R.H.: Kennedy for President.7 I got a group of about 12

oeople from Central New York to come down when we started‘
this to have their pictu;es taken with the Senator and to

give us & good send wff. ' The particular fear of Steve. Smith f g5

- was that we might do something to-upset the established
politlcal order there, as they were still very much on.the
fence. ' They were going ®are for a neutral candidate, not -
commlttlnu themselves to the Kennedy movement at all :

J.Dsk Uell Crotty and O'Connell-were for Kennedy at that
Time. :

e

Hew YOrk crowd was nkt.

R.H.: . Crotty and O'Connell were very outspoken but the f

: J.D.: How 'beutrin'Rocheeter?j PeSnef? ¥y H

- R,H.: "Bill Posner. That was the next time I saw Senator
Kennedy. He came over there to speak in Rochester, and I
was stsnding down in the hotel lobby with a couple of my:
candidates from Syracuse; I wanted them to have their pic-
tures taken with Semator Kennedy. He was extremely popular

in Central New York and all these. photographers and prominent

politicians, etc. were standing around and ‘I was standing off
by myself, by the elevator I don't want to horn in on this
particular greeting plan but the minute he walked into the:
hotel lobby, he spotted me as well as this large crowd
waiting to see him and came right over to see me¢ .and tell
~me now happy he was to see me and how happy he wasg that' I
was there. !



J.D.: Who was tba qtate Chalwﬁﬂﬂ thcn“ Pendergast?

R.H.: Pendergest was in the Sndtu. Bill Posn;r was the
one that was initlating this particular movemsnt n: Cens -
tral New York. He was a strong Kennedy: uuppoz*ter at thp
t'mp but rather reluctant to m?h his views too well knowu
Shortly after that, Senator Kennedy came. to Syracuse i ¥

UnLVEPaitJ to receive a degrbe and to make thﬂ commencémenu-

address. We were....
J.D.: This would be the spring of ;59?
R.H;: This was the spring of '59.and I went out to the

'airport-to meet him. They .2lsc had a welcoming committee
from the University that was &cad by Harlan Cleveland,

" who was head of the Maxwell School at:Syracuse and is .-

presently an Assistant Secretary of Statej;-and we both
met him "there and Harlan Cleveland brought us back to the
hotel where there was a suite reserved for the Senator. -
At this point, his old financial habits came very much
into evidence-~-he needed Vitalis, I had to go out and.
buy Vitalis for him and he needed...anything he needed
I was shelling out for; so it was rather an, expen41Ve '
week-~end. I was more or less his bat boy that part-
iculszr time. . But I can remember something that I Ehought
was rather amu31ng He spoke to Harlan Cleveland. Thay
were having a dinner of about 75 prominent businessmen
for him that night and he spoke to Harlan and said Ted.
Sorensen didn't accompany me on. this trip as Rip Horton is
here and is able to take care of any little jobs ‘that have’
To be done, would it be all right-for him to attend the
dinner with me tonight? AndiHarlan kind of mumbled as
though he'had a hot potato in his mouth, obviously wasn't
too keen on having me horn into this dinner, which I.
wasn't trying tc do; but Senator Kennedy was just- being
nice about the thing and very reluctantly said he guessed
'ﬂt would be all right. And as he left the room, Senator
Kennedy made some remark: to the effect--where the devil
does he get off being so high and mighty about this head

of this Maxwell School, why he's lucky to earn $75oo a yeér, '

o b T

J.D,: Was Cleveland active in DbmocraLJc poljtics in
’ Syracuse at that lee” : : i i

R.H.: When we started thls Kcnnedy for President. Club up'
there, we had a very hard time getting support.. We wanted
to get somebody who was prominent in the comnunity as well
"as being a Democrat, of course. I .telephoned Harlan

v e g e e
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Clevelend, told him ﬁe-were going to start it, told him :

we wanted to get prominent citizens in it; and. I'd be int- SR
erested in arranging, this thing was going to be pre- ?
arranged, in having him made Chairman of this Kennedy for
President Club. And Harlan Cleveland, -over the telephono,‘

told me that after all, many of these"candidates such as

- AdiaiiStevenson were his good friends, and he didn't .see,

‘he couldn't see his wad clear to head up this particular -

" movement for Senator Kennedy. No, Harlan Cleveland was

most inactive as far as our movement was: concerned

S a e o T R s

ey

J D. He . probably-was he active in other Democratic ‘

Dolltlcs there°
1]

“R.H.: ‘Not partlcularly He was more'interested in the
internatlonal scene and keeping irons in the fire whlch..,.

J.D, Tha town and the Univer31tj were separate, you know‘
in some towns where there's a- Unlversity, Un1versity people

are all involved and.

R.H.: Embroiled.

4.D.5 " Bibrolled and. involved ds politlcs, and 4in" othere,- R
there is a certain aloofness or separateness. Ty 3

BR.H.t! No, Herlan Cleveland.... There were some University A o
professors up there who were interested. Bradcroff, Brad- . *g}g_;' s
ford Airplane County Chairman and Board Chairman, but Harlan gt B
Cleveland considered himself above that. . He:participated ° . o v et
in no way whatsoever and wouldn't lend hlS gooa name to the @g“ . B
Kennedy for President movement. =~ . V_g‘,‘ SN RO T T

'J.D;:w Well, your delegates in New York were picked in a Y. ar s
convention, wewen't they? They weren't picked in, 8 pr1mary°~7‘,£prp

R.H.: . That's correct, yes

J.D.: . What was the next step in your efforts to get some;
delegates? o w

R.H.: We had our delegates from Central New York lined up’
pretty well. The County Chairman.of Syracuse was. in favor e B
of it and Harlan Cleveland was named as a delegate. He had - ' = &
to make a sizable contribution to the local county. organ- ¢ /. .
ization and he was committed to go for President Kennedy g

on the first ballot;: but after that, he was free to make hig =
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own choice, 5 S 5
J.D.: When you say Central New York, cba1d that.Ee*as faf,f-uif V”*
west as Auburn? , g o e Y A et B e 2E, Sy

R.H.: Very definitely.

e

R
N

W e wOuld it.go--it didn't" go over to Buffalo? o

AT
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R.H.: VYes; it went to Buffalo.”

: ;J.D.: Oh it went to Buffalo.'

R.H.: Yes, that was Crotty g territory

s

AT

J.D.: Did you go up then to the north and to watertown,_tC3}f
and. .. ; oo bR e

AT

# Rt "YeB; wé did.. ‘This organizatidn, ﬁorking clbselyVW1fh};ﬁﬁ
. Pete Crotty, this Kennedy for President’ movement, encom-.
passed everything from Albany rlght .a..“f_ .

J.D.: North-as far west...

R.H.: As far west as Buffalo. Our'maih'shppdrt was Albany,
. Syracuse, Rochester, and Buffalo.s.Those'wereathe four key ' ..
.ecities in that particular area. : : A 2

J.D.: Did the leaders there jndlcate that they thoughc theyf'f!
would be strengthenlng the local ticket with John Kbnnedy9 Bl

R.H..N Very much yes, very mLch uo, yeg You see up in
that area even though religion shouldn't enter into politics;
there's a high incidence of Catholics that runs over, bO% in
Syracuse. There's a large Irish group, a large Italieén group,
& large Polish group and those people were very strong for:
Senator Kennedy. So theé politicians were responding to the.
electorate end thought that he would dd the . best JOb in
helping the local candidatpq win 518LtL0nS- _ .
I

gD Ouwte a few of the identifiable pLhnlc group pop -
ulation up thewe 1h not normajly BCmUCfdtlc, too, n't it2

R.B.z The ruwal areas are h“dVllJ RupUbliCduﬁ the far
group, and they would be always R cpublican;’ ald antl_ any
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Democrat whether it was Kennedy or anybody else,  But in

mocra
the thieS where you had the ethnic groups, they were
Democratic. : ; : ) i
J.D,: Did you see the President again before the election -

iter that '5 trip?
R.H.: ' ﬁ;ter the cowvention...

J. 0,5 No, I mesn beuneen thcn and the nauiondl conventicn.

R.H.: No, I didn't see hlm untll 1ftcr the gvaduatjon a*
Syracuse University, efbter the commencement address. I
sooxe to him on the phone two or three times. ~Shortly
fter thé convention in July of 1960; this would be, T
WecﬁiVmﬂ a telephbone call. from him after he had gotten .
the nomination, asking me to come with the Kennedy group’
and partlcipaue in the election. -He suggested that I go-
see the compamy I worked for and get a leave of absence :
from them, with pay if possible, he Sp@ﬂljled and-if not,

that somehow the Kennedy c¢rowd, the' Democratic party would .

be able to carry me through. ;SQ.I_Cde to New York and
spoke to the company I worked for who gave me .a leave of
absénce to participate, without pay, I might say, and T
ceme to Washington and saw Bobby Kennedy and Lem:-Billings.
I was then assigned to the State of Nﬁbrasha, I went out’
there and worked for the three months.“ The President -
himself did not come out. to that area to campalgn. He
made one trip out there to 'Offut Air Force Base in Omaha
at which time I didn't see him. It was meant to be non-
partisan., It was part of his br 1eFing on international
affairs and our capability; soc pol ,Llcal,people weren't
meant to attend it. L % L5

% 1 ' That was his only visit to Nebfa lka during the
campaign? ,

R.H.. Durﬁng the campaign, he had been chere durlng the

Drimary... : : ,

J.D.: Yes.

-

AT
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R.H.: ...80 he had built up a‘rathef strong organization.

JxBut You wmeren't at the-convén*ibn, Rip?i

s B .8 No, I didn't go out to Lhe convcntion..

J.D.: I-thought I remcmbared seelng your name - down as
the the coordinator. in Neowas I guess 1t is ;rom a later lis

H.e From a later 1lst you must have seen that, Joeu

f.D.{ Nho had Nebraska at the convention?-

R.H.: Well, there was. Bernle Boyle who was the State
Chezirman. g T B _ : .

J.D.: But you know’within’theﬁﬁennedy éroup... A¢ Los -.,_
Angeles, there was one name assigned to each state. -Like
Joe Tydings was Florida and Maryland- that sort of thing.

R.H.: I don't know. Kennedy had won the pr¢mary, ‘8o he
had a certain number of thelr votes it )

J D, Wéll now, dquwhat dia you do out in N‘ebr*aslca9 Loy
‘R.H.: . I went out there.  Bobby’ 5ent me out Wlth a suit-.
cage and told me to go out there and start a Kennedy for
President Club or a Citizens for Kennedy Club. I .went-out
- there around the flrst of August, I'd say. No funds, no-
" thing. So initially'I had two problems; one of funds,
and cone to get a state chairman for the Kennedy movement.
Bobby referred me to Bernie Boyl&i who was the National.
Committeeman from Nebraska and, of course, Boyle.who was
a tough, oldtime, ruthless, hard nosed politigian, wanfed _
no part of this movement. He gave me:a couple of dog - :
catihers to head up the Citizens for Kennedy, and I turnﬁd
them down and Boyle said, "Well, I can assure of “one: :
thing~that if I have my way, your campaign 1s going to e
fall flat on its face. You're not going to get money;-.
youtre not going to get any support." However, I went.
to Hans Jensen who had headed up. the Citizens for
Kennedy in Nebraska and Hags o, os 05 L

J.D.: Before the coqvention?

R,H.: Before the convention. And Hans... took over as
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State Chsirman.

J.b.i where'was he from? :
: L |

R.H.: He was from a 11ttle town out31ée'of Lincoln,
Hebraska, Plént out in the rural area. ‘He was a
Lutheran. and farmary, which is a large votlng block 1n

that particular area. e <

J.D.: ®wo large voting blocxs.,'were you able to"
organize. clubs and‘participate? {" ' W
RH.:" We organized clubs, yes. ‘There were ]ust 12 ciuies
wvtk a population of 20,000 or over there. 'The two largest
cities, of course, were Lincoln and Omsha. I got guite a

bit of support in Omaha, got, & lesser desgree of support in
Lincoln, but we raised funds. As a matter of fact; the initial
fund had to be raised at my expense. T invested $1,000 in
these straw hats and went down and sold them at the State

Fair for $1 aplece, which was twice thercost; and thatis the
way we got it off the ground and then wo,naturaTJy,‘as wWas
true., of many areas, had to buy every bit of ddVL rtising
~and buttons and bracelets and PT plnS.=. :

o D.: Was Helen.ﬁbaouch ouu‘thﬂre durlng that°

R.H,: " Helen Adbouch went with Bcrnie‘%oyle when there

was a definite break between Bernie and myself, even bthough
I tried to hold the Democratic party, what there was of 1%
with the Citizens for Kennedy mouompnu. Helen Adbouch.
chose to go with Bernie Boyle. : :

J.D?_:_ She had 1ived: in Nebraska, hadn't she?

H.: She lived in Omsha, yes. And. thP two gr*oupb were
coastantly fighting. PRernie te]ephonaaBobby one time, it
was on Labor ﬁay week-end, and suggested that. they throw
me out of the State, becauue all I was downg was messing
things up. And I spoke to Bobby, oh, several times du;ing
the campaign, and he always seemed in my opinion te be taking
Bernie's side in the argument. At one point, Bernie ubnt'uu
far as) to hold s press ecnierence and gay that the Citizens
for Fenneay movement was wreck ng tﬂe state, but... :

R,H

J.D,: There was a lady assoceiated with the Cltizens; I
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can recsll...

. R,H.: Mra., Jane Stoner.

J.D,: Mrs. Stoner. They were as ked to submit W@CCly
reports to the National Citizens for Kennedy-Johnson in’
the Esso'Building in Washington; and the last ‘item  on the
‘mimecgraph sheet was "any special problems?"”  And Mrs. '
Stoner, who wrote dutifully every week, would. Jist undor
any qoecwl problems-still Bernie Boyle. il At Wt

B.H.z: That s good. Ves, Bernge wouldn't let us—dwdn't
‘want us to raise funds., He sald we were tapping his funds
but we had the right to raise funds, too. He was more in-
terested in the state ticket. We were strictly in erested
in the candidate for President % e o

oJ B3 ﬂas the Governor up°'

R.H.: Frank Morrlson was running,‘and our: relationb with
Frank were good. ‘ ‘ : : ; 5

J.D.: Was there a Senator up? AY
Sezelf 7

. *

'+ Gongressmen.

R.H.: No, no Senators were running that year 'Justfthe"‘

T.B.3 Congressmen?.
R.H,: Congréssmen, the four Coﬁ”ressmén wereirunhihg}
J.D.: The res t of the state t10ket9 ’ ik

Yes, yesa.

A =
g |=

Was 1t ﬁelt that the Pres1dentf° religion would be -
a handicap in Nebraska? ’ , : '

R.H.:,: His religlon was definltely a handicqp out there
J.D.: Among Ihe Hoi-Bl1p vote° ” ' '
R.H.: “Among the famm bloc uarticularly

The non-bioc. White Anglo -Saxon Protestant vote9

&y
w
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R.H.: The non-bloc. ' They used to have meetings in
churches. They'd advertise these meetings, various
denominations, telling people to come ‘to a mass meeting
on why they shouldn't vote for a° Cathol1c for Presgident.
“The religious issue was very, very. prominent there., A

" great deal of literature was being mailed into-the: state R
from out-of-state somewhere, talking about how the Pope -

was golng to come to the White House; and how the. Knlghts

of Columbus were a segret armed army ‘to talke over the -
government. So religion was a very prominent Tactor, but
without the religiolis issue, Senator Kennedy couldn't . -
possibly have won that particular state. It's Just too

far gone Republlcan. No Democratic candiﬂate..i e

J.D.: Wnho did campaign the state for the Preq1aen Any
otheér member of the family, or did- the vice presldential
candidaté campaign in the state? Er :

; . b :
R.H.: Yes, Lyndon Johnson spent two days there. "He was .
very well received., He was in both Omaha and Lincoln.. -
Bob Kennedy came out. He was there in Omaha, Lincoln and
two or three of the smaller towns.- He got a-very good ;
reception, but we lacked crowds.,  Bobby gave me an extremely _
hard time as a result of it. ' I stood at the foot of his
bed as he lay and relaxed one evening before dinner and he -
said,. "Rip, can you possibly explain what goes on here to:
me?" I had no explanation and I felt like I did when I
was a Mucker and they were throwing me out of Choate. He.
chastised me pretty roundly for his swing through Nebraska.’
Those were the . and Joan Kennedy came out and campaigned.
d.dd. s Did you have a social Lyne campalgn, teas, and that
sort of thing with Joan? o gl -

R.H.: Yes,

J.D.: ‘Geared to thelladies? :

R.H.: Yes, we did. We had teas in the principal citieg
and some of the smaller cities. I'd go around and talk and
try .to explain why they should vote Ffor Senator Kennedy; but
his appeal, of course, was more to the large Eastern in-
dustrial centers and this would not go in Neuiaska - They!re
too conservative, very conservative people.  And I think
Nebraske, I'm unhappy te say, had the largest,K Republican
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majority of a
the President gdn't 1 et me forget when I saw him-after
the election : : ! "

‘ LA
d.D.: What did he say?

R.H.: I went over theré& for Dinndr to'the White House ;
gnd he sald he . just couldn't understand how a Frank
Horrison. & DPemocrat, could win the ;:,dovmmcm ahw... :

J.D.: Was Morrison Catholie? =

R.H.: No, Morrison's not & Catholie¢. ''And how he would
01?y'get gomething like 38% of the vote and Morrison go#
51% of the vote., . And I had an extremely hard time ex- -
plaining to the President becsuse actually he was needllng
-me. ‘He knew much more than I did-about 1t.

J.D.: Do you think he really hadn't eapegtad to WLD and he
was pulling your leg; or do you think he was also trying to
. learn from it maybe“ o g e Wl el .

R.H.: He might have been trang to. 1&arn ffom it and’i
pointed out that Frank Morrlson campalgned on an entlrely
different type of a platform bhen he was. campalgnlng on.

gD, utrlctly on mtate issues

R.H.t Strictly on state'issues,‘ﬁbé;ﬁétiohai'iésugs.7~
J.D.: Who was the Républicén’qandidéte-fof:govérnbr?'
ggggj; I really can't remembéfrhislnéﬁé at tﬁé preéent time.

J.D.: Was he the incumbent or was'he vulnerable on his.
record or anything like that? . Did Morrison campalgn ag-
ainst the other man's recopd, som L”'ﬂ Tike that? . 3
R.H.: The other man had not—-he‘had_no record. He was an.
extremely heavy drinker and he made accusationg againgt
Frank Morrison as to hils ties with' labor which in Nebraska
. ds not s popular thing. His ties to the Teamsters, spec-

ifically, which Frank was able to disprbve so he made this
man out a liar, and Frank was just a good campaigner.

J.D.: Did he campaign separate from the national ticket there?
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R.H.: VYes, he did. He wouldn't get too involved with us.
He'd cspitalize, for instance, when Estes Kefauver came
there to campaign~-then Frank and I would be on the same
,mlﬁtform. But generally speaking, Frank would not tie
himself with the Administration, with the Kennedy,program:
at 211. : ' B it ] '

Jd.D.: Yoy snould have told the Preuldent that he didn't
carry Nebrasks becauge he didn't campaﬁ&n Lhare i :

R.H.:‘ I‘think I did tell him that. He said -”Wéll ‘after

ali, I was out there I made..."” He had the number of
appearances that he made there, very speciflcally as to

number. - . .

-‘J.D,: Before? -
R.H.2 Prior %5
J.D.: The Conventloﬂ

H.H, Prior to the convention yes. “That's when he
camp algned for the delegates. 14 s < ke : |

J.D.¢ That's fcauue thcre was a prlmary tPop Qele étésQ_
Yes, 1 that was different. : A

R.E.: At-the time, something 1nﬁeresting came up. Bernie
Boyle had run a picnic for the President and to meet dil thm'
lesding Democratic politicians in Lhe state ' o L

LD“—Bﬂvm'mecmwmmum?'

£% |
R.H.: This was before the conVGntion and having given this
big picnic at his estate, he billed the Presldent for the
picnic., I think the figure was $1600; znd I remember Pres-
ident Kennedy never recovered from having. to pag Ehat part-
iculer bill that Bernie Boyle gent him, .

J.D.: Whose ox was gored? IT was an OX roast, Wﬁsn't s Ly

R.H.: Yes, it was an ox roast, Do you remember.lt, Joe?
Were you there? I don't remember.

: w o : S j & o B
J.D.t2 No, I w%p't theve, My impressgion 1s that he edlther
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.chb to Colorsdo from the ox roast or Wont 10 the QX rOdSt

from Colorado. One or the OthuP.
R.H.: VYes, whategver it was.

No,.: I"11 tell-you—our national committee man'wentjto‘it,

FoDet

R.H ¢t  Yea.

J.D.: Because PBernle Boyle was the National Commztteeman
from Nebraska, and I can remember his tallking sbout what a

great occasion it was.  I'd guess 1t was around September,
R,H.: That's right,. i
il b

i

'59, something around in theré,:around-faif time.

R.H.: Yeé, yes.

Jd.,D.: County fair time. Well, mere you able Lo satisfy
the President that you hadn't real]y been campaignino for :

. Nixon-Lodge?

R,H.1 I don't think he was ever GOHVlnCPd but fortunatul;

lem's record, Lem Billing' 8 re cord.... ;
& 7

J.D.: Was it wors&? '

R.H.: Was much wors than mine.

-
r" 4

J.D.: .No, you had, your state uﬂnu worsk.

R.H.: My state went worﬁt but he p01nted out w1th a good .
deal of humor, T thought, tha with apparent. disbelief, that
vowy ﬁlﬁE?’Ct that peor Lem Billings ever had from 1956 to
1360 when he ran the campaign in Wisconsin, Lem had managed
toc lose everyone one and after all, all I had done wa lose
one. So Billings was the horrible example of the way . not to

run cempaigns.

J.D.: Don't you think quite possibly th;t they had, after
a certain point mﬁjb "he had insisted that Lem be given :
always the most dij FquWt district; so that he would- continue

Lo have u@ﬂf%hlzg to kild him Auout?

R.H.: Well, I...
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.D.: VUhere was Lem; Rip? In one of the Dakota's, wasn's

R.H.: No, Lem was in Wisconsin.

J.D,: Wisconsin? No, that wasrduriﬁg_the priMary;j

'R.H.: No, that was in...

J,D.: In the general, too?

R.H.: During the general, yea. Lem and I used to talk on:
the phone, oh, once or twice a week. Bobbyxhad given Lem
instructions to help me anyway that he could and because
Lem had been more experienced in this particular area but
not more successful. So Lem and I used to speak' and he was
having his problems in Wisconsin; and I remember when he.
lost Wiscongin how hadly he felt about it in that the Pres-
ident had campzigned out there during the pr1mary for such

"a long time,

J.D.:  And he might really, Tem might really have thought .
fhat they were going to win there. ; & : : ot

R.B.: 'He might have, yes. Well, he hoped they would win.
But, of course, when you're thaL,close to.a campaign, you

always think you have a chance.~
J.D.: ¥ou have to pr. Jou re no good

R.H.: I had hopes for Nebraﬂfa until T got the first returns
from | Kansas %nd then I realized that we were golng to take an
awful shellacing because those two staues were so similar.

- J.D.: How did you come to get Jnto the Kennedy Administrativn
dIter he was elected President? { i : ;

R.H.: Well, after he was_elected President, first'of,all,

I received a phone call from him; I'd say either one or _
two days after the election, thanking me so much for part- | .
icipating. I had gone home; I hadn't gone to the Cape as '
so many pecple had and just 'figured that I had made a con- -
tribution. I was hoping that he would ask me to come to j
Washington, but there was never any word or mentlon of such
an arrangement. In other words, I was doing it voluntarily.

I went back to work and then it was around, oh, the latter
part of December, just in between Christmam and New Years

ST N e e SN TS S e - o P oy e
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when he was down in Palm Beach at the tim», T fecc1ved
another call from him, He asked me if I would like. to come.
to Washington, and I told him I'd just love to; and he told -
me to make arrangements to quit my Jjob; and I'd hear from - _
him in the near future. So I quit my Jjob and sat there wait-. .
ing for the phone to ring, not being at all sophisticated :
about politics and not realizing he ‘was slightly more =
interested in the cabinet and jobs of that nature than he
was in his old pal Rip. And I sat around for about a ménth
until they were ready to foreclose on the mortgage on my

. house; znd- I then got a call from &Paul Corbin who had o
heard about my predicament and whom I knew. ~ He had been:
in Syracuse running the Kennedy campaign, telling me to
come right down to Washington that I was going into the -
Defense Department.. It's not that the President delib-

era ely forgot me; but he just had so many things on his
mi and after all I think it was really up to me o taku
the initiative and come down and see what he wanted. And -~
I was first assigned to the Department of the Army down here,.
and, oh, I hadn't been here for more: than two or three weeks
then I got my first &elephone call from the White House. '
ILem Billings was in town, to come down, over there for dinner.

'+ I can remember how hervous I was walking into the White

~House and realizing that I was going to meet ‘the President
and the big problem in my mind was what 'do" I ¢all him. Do
I call him "Mr. President" or do T call him "Jack'". I was
sort of wadting in a little television room that they have
. on the second floor, and he came in and Just said. "hi Rip'
“Just as normally as he would have down at ChoaLe or. Prince-
ton or anywhere; and instinctively I said "hi Jack'. I
continued to call him Jack possibly oh several times after
that; but soon shifted as he grew - into the Jjob more and

became more the Presgident. I.,.
J.D,: He assumed a new personality to ybﬁ.,."

R.H.: Yes. !

J.D.: ... and you looked at him...

R;H.: Very definitely.

J.D.: ...as the President in addition to beghg your old
Triend. i : | ;

R, Yes,\an old friend, very definitely. At first,. it
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s a toss-up between’'an old friend and President; but g
time went by, he just graw in stature somehow. He seemed

z:
'm 4]

to grow bigger, aud as he grew bigger I-dropped the "hi
Jack’ business; and it was alway% M, Presidont
J,D,: You and he and Lem had Soime rcmlnlaclng about o]d t:moof'

’

|
3

BRH,1- Yes.

J.D,: At that dinner, part 1cu13r1y,‘1 vas thing ébbut p i 7
23 well as generally, — A b o

R.H,: At that particular evening? Yes, he had a great
filzir for bringing people into conversations. He'd talk
to me about what I was doing over in the Pentagon. And
can remember him asking what I was malking and. at that point,
ey were- creating a job for me over here; an& I think the -
salary was going To be about $14,000 a year; and as I say,
he was a very loyal friend. He sald well, I want .you to make
more money than that and he telephoned- Rdiph Dungan that venry
firgt evening and said T want Rip to make at least $16,000 :
& year. £End sthe next day., everybody from the Secretary: of
the Aﬂm& to Ralph Dungan was trying to reach me to apologilze
for paying me $14,000 a year; . and 1t was. all a big mistake,
but the President definitely felt that T 'was worth $16,000
& yvesr to the Administration. But to me that is just an:
example of his thoughtfulness to old friends and friends
who had been loyal to him through the years; but his- loyalty
was ‘s very outstanding thing. But we talked about many -
subjects there at the various times I went to the White House -
for dinner. I can remember béfore the - after the Cuban
crisis, I was there azlone, which was pﬂObably the most en-
joyeble evéning T had with him. Charlie Bartlett was dus to
come but couldn’'t make it. And we went down to see a movie’
-in the projection room down in. the basement; and the.
Prepident Just kiddingly said to me. . "Rip, if you were ms,
what would you do about Cuba?" .And .I presume It wag very
much on his mind at that stage, this was three or four months
after the Bay of Pigs; and I justi offhand said, because I .
didn't have the least idea what to do about Cuba, to turn it
over to the Catholic Chureh and let Bhem handle it.  They'ré
all Catholics down there anyhow and don't worry about. the
place. He just lauvughed; he didn't pay too much attention. -

GO me.

JoB, 3 id he peem burdened shortly after the--the first time
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you went over there’to dinner, it was just, oh, its
probably not more than a month alter he came into 0xf1¢e¢

R.H.: It was probably somehime in early Warch that-Iiwent;

=}

)

d.D.: Was he quieter or was he ﬂore warr%lous or was thefb :

no chanﬂc

R.H.: Just chatty, joking, a little comuarea w1th 1ater 5
times, a little more inclined to Lalﬁ more about problems.'
As time went on, he became more quiet in the presence of
people who weren't actually concerned .in those particular
problems. But he was very easy. 'T can remember after -
- dinner, there was also Steve and Jean Smith there; I was
- e2mazed he said he felt like.a walk, and.we suddenly walked
-out the front door of the White House, down to the gates -
on Pennsylvania Avenue and all® the. Secret Service.men were
running around, lights were flashing, providing protection
for him; and he just walked right out of the gates and we.
walked 211 around the White Houoe, the total distance of
the White House. And People stood there in amazement to
suddenly see the President taklng a walk-at that tims of
;- the evening-it was about eight o'eclock. He didn't have
‘too high & regard for his safetv outplde.r ‘j.‘ o R @

J D Then laber on as the. months went by, Jou say grad—-

” G\l

ually he seemed to talk less about Presldentlal bubjness when

he was with friends.

R.H,.? -Y¥&8, tlat's right.

J.Dit vy 0ld Triends #nd, mode about what9 What wduid?hé_f;'

talk about instead?

R.H, He'd llﬁ“en ; little more. Gﬂnerally, he had people
bh&fb who were 1light and would joke. People like Lem Bill-
ings when I was there or Jim Reed of Treasury or Red Fay;

end he'd be inclined to listen. He'd ledd the conversation;.

but he'd listen. I remember one incident that I hadn't
thought of for quifte a2 while. The President-at that time,
unfortunately, my marriage wasn't doing too well; and there
was talk of a divorce, and he was aware of it; and he spoke

to me about it. And he said, well, Rip, isn't there anyway

you could patch it up? Couldn't you and Jane possibly. go

off together for a week somewhere or take a trip, or do some-
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thing to try to bring 1t together again, and I probably
answered to the effect I didn't think there was much point
to it; it just wasn't working, that's all:  And he made a .|
remark that how happy he was with sJackis and how they were
getting along better then than they ever had; ‘and he also
mentioned one or two other friends of his who were having

marital difficulties at that particular time and how hopeléss'i

their situation seemed to be., But his marriage, at that
point, seemed :to be a very happv one. Also, I could see.
his complete love and devotion for 11Bt1e|Caroline John-
John was just a baby at the time, too young, but whenever I
was there, Caroline would always.come in. to!say good night
to him, and they would talk fer quite a while; and he would
play with her and tease her a little.. She was very much'in
hig thoughts. But the Whlte House for somebody with his
desire to do things, to' move, almost seemed like a prison.

I asked him one time; I suggested that Fim Reed had a
lovely house in Maryland and I said couldn't you possibly
get out of here some evening; and we could all go over to
Jim's house and have a party there, just to break away Ifrom.
this prison. And he said he didn't know of any secret _
exits from the place. There was no way he could get outodhf
it without the Secret Service following him whereever he
went. When he would no sooner pull up to somebody's -house,
the Secret Service would be there; the lights would start '
fleshing, and then his. presence would be well known ' ;

' He was interested in what I was doing 1n_the Depart-
ment of Defense. I remember one evening I was there and he
was then involved in the AID program, trying to build that
up. And, of course, his big problem was getting capable-
people to come to Washington, who did have a sense of de- -
ication and who wanted to do something for the country and
the administratlon, not necessarily for him.  And he sug-~ ik
gested that I might be interested in taking over one.of the
AID jobs in South America, an administrator of the program,
and he mentioned Bolivia, I pointed out that I was; at tChat
point, working exclusively in the civil rights area, and he,
sfter thinking iv over, said, well, that's probably our most
serious domestic problem that we are faced with., I rate it
with any problem that we have in the world today, the top two
or three problems; and we decided then snd there that I wouldd

D 2 e e P
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! clivil rﬂghts field, even. though I had no prior
experience in it. He had rather a minute knowledge of the
area and of the valous urobl@m areas. ‘At one polnt 'he
suddenty szsked me, we had had a good deal of probles with
Invaiis Ship Building Company in PQSﬂagoula, Mibul%:ippi,
and out of a clear blue sky he said bto me... '@ . i

J.D.: Hhatfslthe name of that company?

... Ingellé.

J.D.: Yes, yes, I know.

R.H.:” In Pascagoula...out of a clear blue sky he s3iid to

me, Rip, can't we do something At Ingall's Ship Yari? :

Can't we do something for the Negroes. down there,’ g=t them
better Jobs? And we had just made guite a few brea throughs
down there in all the skilled trades; and I was ablz to point
that out to him that we were making headway.
was laborious, but we were making headway.
for eivil rights. ' I can remember so well onmday, we were. -
swimming in the pool at the wnlte House, and I happened to
mention to him- that Nersey Joe Walcott,' who had ‘been a great

Negro heavyweight boxer was looking for 2 job with the federal"

government; that he was making something like $60-65 a week -
in Jersey City. - I said how terribly difficuit it was to..
place this man because unfortunately he had gamblirg
connections; and that in the Department of Defensge is an.
unpardonable gin. 8o Senator, I mean President Kennedy said
" to me well, don't you realize these poor pecple whc had no
where to go either in the past had to turn to gambling
connections or in too many cases communism because there
was no area open to them to go to He had a:great sense of
' empathy; a great sense of compassion, I'd call it, for the
- Negroes and their problem. , dhend s b

J.D.: When you say, you sald earlier that you thought Chat
John Kennedy would end up as a writer, that that's where he

had quite a bit of interest in his earlier days, ] guess -

you weren't surprised that he would end up with such quaiitv
1n his public addresses, public statcments Y

'R H.. That's correct, but even ths qua11ty of it surpri&ed
me who felt that he would go into writing The very fact that
he excelled to receive a Pulitzer prize and the. very nature
of his addresses, the grace with which they were dcliVered

It wes slow; 1T
- But hé aad a feel :
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and the use of words.
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1ub? You were most 1nstrumental in formlng that

J.D.: Rip, can you tell us & little about the New Frontier's'

|
(

C
R.H. Well, it's not at all related to Lhe Muckers Club

d D 2 Uhat is 1t?

R.H. This club stagted by John Stillman from New York 'énd vlie

| BIiil | Nlllus from Missouri, and one or two other people, thelr“
thinking being that there should be a. group dedicated to whqc»

the administration was trying to do. ‘People who were compl~ 5 v f

etely dedicated to the ideas and: the dreams of President.
Kennedy. And it started with just four or five peoole; T
happened to be one of the original people who'went to the.
initial -dinners, and I took it over shortly thereafter, and
we expanded this group to about sixty with two or threé from
each agency. And we were well aware of the fact that we 5

weren't here to re-make the governmenti--that's an imposolble ;5'

challenge, an impossible job; but we felt that if people

were dedicated enough just to President Kennedy to possibly ;ﬁ

push certain programs in the agencies just a little, that
we mmght be helpful in p3531ng some of. his program o 8

J.D,: Were they mostly people who had been interested 1n
John Kennedy's candidacy prlor to- the convention° f

R.H. Not necessarlly, no. They were Humphrey people, ‘they -
were a few Johnson people, Symington people, ‘not necessarily
all Kennedy people at all. I'd say that maybe 30 or 40% o
were originally Kennedy people,. but ‘when. they did come here
to the Government as they all did, some had ﬂlready been, « .
in Government and partlclpated in:the caﬁgalgn. They were
supposedly completely dedicated to President. Kennedy s
program which often times brought them into conflict WLth t
programs of their particular departments. They were there

to fight, if necessary, the bureauracy and in the case OF. %My i

Defense-the military, to. get: Fennedy programs through

J.D.: It was a dinner club, right? }'

R.H.: Yes, it met twice a month . One evcnlng, nne night
we would have & closed meeting, possibly lifteen or twenty
would show up and then the other night in the month, we would
have an open meeting. ‘We had many prominent <rovermment ‘people

LT vt il
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from then the Vice President Johnson on down and oddly.. . -
enough in November of 1963 I had written a letter to the-
President asking him to speak in December of that year. but
of course his death...broke that. : s -

J.D.% I'm sure he would have come. So}ensen époker,,Bob;{.
Kennedy. | e i : o FE e b

R.H.: Ted Sorenson spoke, Byron White spoke, Bobby Kennedy,
Iyndon Johnson, Udall, Hubert Humphrey, Caré Albert. .They

were =11 strong Administration people that we got there and
thelr purpose was to explain . their programs to us and then 3
we'd sttempt to gat thoselprograms through ] Wral

J.D.: The members got to know someone in other Departmmntu

. e

who was associated with the President's progfam., :
R.H.: That's right, yes, Thau was very helpful Politics
being what it is in Washington; you often times had to ask
pecple in various Departments for favors whether it's to

try to steer 2 contract into a cloese Congressional District
or whether it's to get somebody placed whom we owe a.political
debt to. So we were able to use this referral sydtem between
Departments to help take care .of political, strictly political,
obligetions. It was a political group. Pregident Kennedy
was aware of this groups as a matter-of-fact. . He and I.

had discussed it one time. He, I think the last time I saw
him was a week~end I spent at Camp David with him end whken
we flew baclk in the helicopter, was talking about the group;
and as I got off the plane, he said good-bye to me; and I
can remember very clearly that he said, "Well, Rip, how
many throats are the HNew Frontwﬁr Club going to cut today*“

J.D.: About how long before hi% death ﬁau thﬁtq

R.H.: I'd say it was the summer'bf 1963,

J.D.: There was updﬁllj someone from the Vhlue House at
your meetings, wasn't there? s

S0

. e .
R.H.: We had Dick Dondhue who was on the White House staff
there and Chuck Daly, both attended. :

: When you went with the President teo Camp David, did
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vyou talk sbout old times? et B

R.H.: That particular weelf-end I was there, Jim Reed was
there, Lem Billings, Ted Kemnedy and Joan; and we made a
tour of the battiefield, B o e B IS A

J.D.: Gettysburg?

R.H.: Gettysburg, yes; and then we talked but -I'd say the
Pregident spent a great share ofithe time talking to Ted; and
I can remember . Joan Kennedy saying how happy she was that Ted
was there and how much she enjoyed having the President

bpeak to Ted about various bills that were. coming before the

Senate, how happy it made her seem. _

1)

J.D.: Ted was then a Senator?

R.H.: Oh, yes, Ted was a Senator. That was in '63. The
summer of 196 3 : : 3 '-._

J.D.: Did the President 1naicate any nostalgja that he
would want to swap places with Teddy? ! ; s

R.H.: No, he didn't. He had at that point, in my opinion,

had grown into the presidency. I can remember Jim Reed and

T talking to him and asking him how he felt the election

would go coming this fall of '64; and he felt quite confident.

His feeling was that if times remain good he'd win without

too much trouble, I don't know who he felt at the time his

opponent would be., I slightly feel that he thought it might

be Senator Barry Goldwater; but.I'm sure of that. That was

just a feeling on my part from listening to him. ~But he was

" fully the President at that stage and he wag definitely Mr.

President to all of us, the outsiders like Jim Reed and myselfl,

. a8 close we had been to him. He came with ug when we went
down to have a shoot against the Secret fervice shooting those
little birds they shoot out of blinds with shot guns; and he

watched that but after that, he went back to the house, his

house, and he read and he rested and then we'd see him at

dinner and the talk was very general. After .dinner, there

was a movie, and he had sobered somewhat I'd say, but he was
still the warm personality that he had always been. but he

just dldn't uispldy this warmness as much because he had too

much on his mind, athat's all.

J.D.: Did he trap shoot at all, ever?
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R.H.: No, he dldn‘t shoot that day with us., Ted and
mvsblf, Jdim Reed and Lam went agalnst these four uPCfet

Service guys
J.D.: And you won, of ‘course.

R.H,: The Secret Service guys won, but their. shooting, I'd
like to zdd, was almost as poor as ours was. I think out of
eight shots they might have hit three birds; and we hit two
and the President got quite a kick out of that, that they
weren't doing too well as shooters; but as tley polnted aute,

their particular forte was pistols

J.D.: It's quite different; all together different. That'
auck huntlng, training, huh? - Where the birds come out pre?fy
fast, ' ¢ : : , : S
R.H.: Yea,.oh, it's impossible. I didn't hiﬁ-one the whole
Cime I was there. But that was the last timd# I saw the:
President, was that particular week-end. He was the President
then. T oh e i PR PR o :

J.D.: You'll miss him. OK Rip?

R.H.: Joe, thank you. ek j*



